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On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”), I am pleased to present the annual report of Capital Estate
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the year ended 31st July, 2010.

REVIEW OF THE RESULTS

The Group reported gross proceeds of approximately HK$226.9 million for the year ended 31st July, 2010 (2009:
HK$137.9 million), which comprised gross proceeds from sales of securities of HK$118.5 million (2009: HK$89.7
million) and income from hotel operations and other business segments totalling HK$108.4 million (2009: HK$48.2
million).

Loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 31st July, 2010 was HK$70.2 million,
as compared to HK$227.2 million for last year.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividends for the year ended 31st July, 2010.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group continued to maintain a liquid position. At 31st July, 2010, the Group had cash of HK$33.0 million
(2009: HK$40.9 million) mainly in Hong Kong dollars and marketable securities totalling HK$50.4 million (2009:
HK$32.3 million).

Total bank borrowings (other than corporate credit card payable classified as “other payable”) were HK$145.6
million at 31st July, 2010 (2009: HK$150.5 million), of which HK$11.9 million were repayable within one year and
HK$133.7 million within two to five years. The bank borrowings were denominated in Renminbi and carried interest
on a floating rate basis.

Other borrowing amounted to HK$80.3 million at 31st July 2010 (2009: HK$113.6 million), which represents the
remaining consideration payable to the vendors by 31st December 2011 for the acquisition of Hotel Fortuna,
Foshan completed in December 2008. The outstanding amount was denominated in Hong Kong Dollar and carried
interest at the rate of 2% per annum.

The Group’s gearing ratio, expressed as a percentage of the Group’s total liabilities over the shareholders’ fund,
was 38.4% at 31st July, 2010 (2009: 39.0%).

EXCHANGE RATE EXPOSURE

The assets and liabilities and transactions of several major subsidiaries of the Group are principally denominated in
Renminbi or Hong Kong dollars pegged currencies, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk and such risk
has not been hedged. It is the Group’s policy to monitor such exposure and to use appropriate hedging measures
when required.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31st July, 2010, the principal activities of the Group are property investment and development,
hotel operation, financial investment and related activities.

Property investment and development

The Group continues to own the vacant land of approximately 10,154 square meters located in Coloane, Macau
for the construction of 48 luxury residential houses and related facilities with a total gross floor area of approximately
19,934 square meters. The Group is awaiting the government’s approval for the commencement of the development.
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The Group holds an effective 5% interest in the land site at Avenida Commercial de Macau through an investee
company, Sociedade de Investmento Imboiliaro Pun Keng Van, SARL. The site is for the development of a
51-storey (plus 4 basement levels) luxurious residential building on the waterfront at Nam Van Lake with a maximum
permitted gross floor area of approximately 55,800 square meters. The progress of the project will be monitored
closely.

Hotel operation

The Group hold 100% interest in Hotel Fortuna, Foshan, a hotel with 408 rooms located at Le Cong Zhen, Shun
De District, Foshan, the PRC, through a wholly owned subsidiary, Foshan Fortuna Hotel Company Limited. After
the Group acquired the operation on 31st December, 2008, the occupancy rate of the hotel has increased by
11.1% and recorded a turnover of approximately HK$93.7 million in 2009 compared to HK$87.9 million in 2008.

The Group also hold a 32.5% interest in Hotel Fortuna, Macau which is owned and operated by Tin Fok Holding
Company Limited, an associated company of the Group. Despite the intensive competition in the Macau hotel
industry, Hotel Fortuna, Macau continued to maintain a high occupancy rate of approximately 93% and recorded
a stable turnover of approximately HK$181.8 million in 2009 when compared to the turnover of HK$184.0 million
in 2008.

EMPLOYEES

The Group offers its employees competitive remuneration packages to commensurate with their experience,
performance and job nature, which include basic salary, bonuses, share options, retirement and other benefits.

At 31st July, 2010, the Group had approximately 654 employees of which approximately 640 employees were
stationed in Mainland China. Total staff remuneration incurred for the year ended 31st July, 2010 amounted to
approximately HK$36.7 million (2009: HK$25.1 million).

PROSPECTS

The site of Hotel Fortuna, Foshan had an undeveloped portion with permissible gross floor area for residential and
commercial uses in excess of 53,000 square meters. The management will launch appropriate development plans
to fully realise such development potential at appropriate times. In 2010, Hotel Fortuna, Foshan started to construct
a 3-storey (plus 2 basement levels) recreational building with swimming pool, gym, sauna, karaoke and other club
house facilities. These new facilities, when completed, are expected to enhance the operational efficiency and
competiveness of the hotel and uplift its occupancy rate and revenue.

On 14 October 2010, the Company entered into a placing agreement to procure subscribers for up to
HK$135,000,000 aggregate principal amount of 4% convertible notes (the “Notes”) of the Company due in 2013
convertible into ordinary shares of the Company. The placing of the Notes is still in progress at the date of this
report, and upon successful completion, it will raise a maximum of up to approximately HK$131 million of net
proceeds (after deducting estimated expenses) in the near future. The placing will broaden the capital and shareholder
base of the Company and strengthen the Group's financial capabilities for future investment activities.
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The global financial market is still facing uncertainties and challenges, and the Group has been cautious in its
investment activities. Overall, the management is optimistic with the long term prospects of the property and
hospitality sectors in Macau and the PRC, and is confident that the Group can capture sound business opportunities
ahead and enhance shareholders' return.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

I would like to thank my fellow directors and staff for their invaluable contribution and commitment during the year.

By Order of the Board

Sio Tak Hong
Chairman

4th November, 2010
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Sio Tak Hong, aged 47, is an Executive Director, Chairman of the Company. He was appointed to the Board in
July 2009. He has extensive business and management experience and has been engaged in many property
projects and commercial developments in Macau. Mr. Sio is a director of Sociedade de Empreendimentos Nam
Van, S.A. (南灣發展股份有限公司) and the chairman of the board of Hotel Fortuna Limited in Macau. Mr. Sio is
also a standing committee member of The Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference of Guongdong
province, Macau District, representative of the industrial, commercial and financial functional group of the Election
Committee of Chief Executive and a Honorary Consul of Grenada since 2005.

Chu Nin Yiu, Stephen, aged 53, is an Executive Director, Chief Executive officer of the Company. He was appointed
to the Board in May 2005. He has over 25 years business and management experience in the electronics industry
in Hong Kong, and was a director and shareholder of a company listed overseas principally engaged in the
manufacture and distribution of electronic products. Mr. Stephen Chu was a 1994 Awardee Member of Hong
Kong Young Industrialists Council Limited, and a director of Tung Wah Group of Hospitals for the year 2001/02.

Chu Nin Wai, David, aged 55, is an Executive Director, Deputy Chairman of the Company. He was appointed to
the Board in May 2005. He has over 20 years’ extensive experience in the electronic industry in Hong Kong an
overseas, and also has experience in property development and investment. He is the elder brother of the Executive
Chairman and the substantial shareholder of the Company, Mr. Chu Nin Yiu, Stephen.

Lau Chi Kan, Michael, aged 53, graduated from Simon Fraser University, Vancouver, Canada in 1980 with a
Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics. Mr. Lau joined the Board in May 2005 and has over 20 years’ business and
management experience in the clothing industry. He owns and manages a garment merchandising and trading
company in Hong Kong and an apparel importing company in the U.S.. Mr. Lau is also the major shareholder of a
number of companies in Hong Kong and overseas, which are engaged in garment manufacturing, importing,
warehousing, apparel design or merchandizing.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Li Sze Kuen, Billy, aged 63, was appointed to the Board in May 2005. He has extensive professional experience
in audit and accounting, and is currently a director of a CPA firm in Hong Kong. Mr. Li is a member of the Canadian
Institute of Chartered Accountants, and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He graduated
from the University of Manitoba, Canada, with a Bachelor of Arts degree.

Wong Kwong Fat, aged 54, was appointed to the Board in June 2005. He is a seasoned manager of an insurance
broking company in Hong Kong. He is responsible for staff management and training, the provision of individual
financial advice to clients and the marketing of a wide range of products including life and general insurance,
package fund and mandatory provident fund. Mr. Wong has over 20 years’ specialised knowledge and experience
in the insurance industry, and is a Fellow Chartered Financial Practitioner of the Life Underwriter Association of
Hong Kong.

Leung Kam Fai, aged 49, was appointed to the Board in June 2005. He is a solicitor of the High Court of Hong
Kong. Mr. Leung currently is a partner solicitor in civil and criminal practice with Messrs. Patrick Wong & Co.,
Solicitors, and has extensive experience in litigation, conveyancing, commercial and probate matters. Mr. Leung
graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a Bachelor of Laws degree, and was awarded the Sir Man Kam
Lo/Jardine Scholarship and Downey Book Prize in 1989. He also holds a Bachelor of Arts degree in Economics &
Political Science from the University of Washington in the U.S.A. and a postgraduate certificate in laws from the
University of Hong Kong.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

In order to attain a high standard of corporate governance, the Company is committed to continuously adopting
and improving effective measures and practices to achieve a high level of transparency and accountability in the
interests of its shareholders.

During the year ended 31st July, 2010, the Company complied with all the applicable provisions of the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, except for the
following deviation:

Under Code A.4.1, non-executive directors should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company are not appointed for a specific term but they are
subject to retirement by rotation at annual general meetings in accordance with Article 103(A) of the Company’s
Articles of Association. The Company will ensure that all directors retire at regular intervals.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company consists of four executive directors and three independent
non-executive directors. One of the independent non-executive directors has appropriate professional qualifications
in accounting or related financial management expertise as required by the Listing Rules.

Providing overall direction and control of the Group, the Board is mainly responsible for the formulation and
development of business strategies and policies, and approval of budgets, results, significant investments and
material transactions. The daily administration and operations, and the execution of plans and policies, are delegated
to the management under the leadership of the Board.

During the year, the Board held 4 meetings. The members of the Board and the attendance of each member are as
follows:

Name of Directors Meetings held/attended

Executive Directors:
Sio Tak Hong (Chairman) 4/4
Chu Nin Yiu, Stephen (Chief Executive Officer) 4/4
Chu Nin Wai, David (Deputy Chairman) 4/4
Lau Chi Kan, Michael 4/4

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Li Sze Kuen, Billy 4/4
Wong Kwong Fat 4/4
Leung Kam Fai 4/4

The biographies of the Board members are set out on page 6 of this annual report under the subject “Directors’
Profile”. The directors have no financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships with each other
except that Mr. Chu Nin Yiu, Stephen (Chief Executive Officer) is the brother of Mr. Chu Nin Wai, David (Deputy
Chairman).
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The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from all independent non-executive directors,
and considers them independent in accordance with the Listing Rules.

All directors have full access to board minutes, papers and relevant information of the Group. They are also
entitled to obtain independent professional advice where deemed necessary in order to enable them to make
informed decisions and discharge their responsibilities and duties accordingly.

Appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance has been arranged for the directors and officers of the Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Sio Tak Hong serves as the Chairman of the Board and Mr. Chu Nin Yiu, Stephen serves as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Group. The Chairman’s responsibility is to oversee the functioning of the Board and the strategies
and policies of the Group and the Chief Executive Officer’s responsibility is to manage the Group’s business.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

According to the Company’s Articles of Association, two of the directors shall retire from office at each annual
general meeting by rotation and shall be eligible for re-election. Any directors appointed by the Board either to fill
a casual vacancy or as an addition shall hold office only until the next following annual general meeting of the
Company and shall be eligible for re-election.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive directors of the Company are not appointed for a specific term but they are
subject to retirement by rotation at annual general meetings in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises the Chief Executive Officer, Mr. Chu Nin Yiu, Stephen, and the
three independent non-executive directors, Mr. Li Sze Kuen, Billy, Mr. Wong Kwong Fat and Mr. Leung Kam Fai.

The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee are to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration of directors and senior management, determine the specific
remuneration packages of all executive directors and senior management including any compensation payable for
loss or termination of their office or appointment, and make recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of
non-executive directors.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting which was attended by all the members.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has not established a nomination committee. Nomination of new director is subject to the assessment
and approval by the Board based on the nominee’s qualification and experience, integrity, commitment and potential
contributions to the Company. During the year, no new director has been appointed.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31st July, 2009, remuneration of approximately HK$1,650,000 was payable to the Auditor for
audit service and approximately HK$2,475,000 for interim review and other non-audit services during the year.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of reference in compliance with the Code. The Audit
Committee comprises Mr. Li Sze Kuen, Billy (Chairman), Mr. Wong Kwong Fat and Mr. Leung Kam Fai, all of whom
are independent non-executive directors.

The principal functions of the Audit Committee include the review and supervision of the Group’s reporting process
and internal controls.

During the year, the Audit Committee held two meetings which were attended by all the members and performed
the following duties:

1. reviewed and commented on the Company’s draft annual and interim financial reports;

2. reviewed and commented on the Group’s internal controls; and

3. met with the external auditors and participate in the re-appointment and assessment of the performance of
the external auditors.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited results of the Group for the year ended 31st July, 2010.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The directors acknowledge the responsibilities of preparing the financial statements of the Group which give a true
and fair view. The statement of the Auditors about their reporting responsibilities is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on page 17.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board recognises its overall responsibilities for the Group’s internal controls, and is committed to the ongoing
development of an effective internal control system to safeguard the Group’s assets, and to enhance risk
management and compliance with applicable legislation and regulations.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control of the Group. The Company
will continue to conduct annual reviews of its internal control system through the Audit Committee, identifying
control weaknesses and risk areas, if any, and taking effective measures to improve the system.

MODEL CODES FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
directors of the Company. Having made specific enquiry of all directors, all directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard as set out in the Model Code for the year.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

In order to keep shareholders well informed of the business activities and direction of the Group, information about
the Group has been provided to the shareholders through annual and interim reports, circulars, announcements
and press interviews. The Company has established its own corporate website www.capitalestate.com.hk to
facilitate effective communication with its shareholders and the public.



Directors’ Report

Annual Report 201010Capital Estate Limited

The directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31st July, 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as a property and investment holding company. The activities of the principal subsidiaries and
associates are set out in notes 18 and 19 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate turnover attributable to the Group’s five largest customers during the year were less than 30% of
the Group’s total turnover.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers during the year were less than 30% of
the Group’s total purchases.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st July, 2010 are set out in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on page 18.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group revalued its investment properties at the year end date and the increase in fair value of the investment
properties amounting to HK$4,240,000 has been credited directly to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Details of the movements during the year in the investment properties of the Group are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the year in the property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 15
to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR PROPERTIES

Particulars of the major properties of the Group as at 31st July, 2010 are set out on page 78.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year, the ordinary shares of the Company were consolidated. Details of the share consolidation and
exercise of share options during the year are set out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTIONS

Pursuant to a resolution passed on 30th December, 2002, the existing share option scheme was adopted (the
“Scheme”).

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.
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The following table discloses movements in the share options issued under the Scheme of the Company during
the year:

Granted Exercised Cancelled

Date of Exercisable Exercise Outstanding during during during Outstanding

grant period price at 1.8.2009 the year the year the year at 31.7.2010

HK$

Category 1: Directors

Chu Nin Yiu, Stephen (note) 19.09.2008 19.09.2008 — 18.03.2010 0.3480 * 11,700,000 * — (11,700,000) * — —

Li Sze Kuen, Billy 19.09.2008 19.09.2008 — 18.03.2010 0.3480 * 2,000,000 * — (2,000,000) * — —

Wong Kwong Fat 19.09.2008 19.09.2008 — 18.03.2010 0.3480 * 1,700,000 * — (1,700,000) * — —

Leung Kam Fai 19.09.2008 19.09.2008 — 18.03.2010 0.3480 * 2,000,000 * — (2,000,000) * — —

17,400,000 — (17,400,000) — —

Category 2: Employees

Employees 19.09.2008 19.09.2008 — 18.03.2010 0.3480 * 2,000,000 * — (2,000,000) * — —

2,000,000 — (2,000,000) — —

Total all categories 19,400,000 — (19,400,000) — —

* The number and exercise price of the share options have been adjusted in the above table to reflect the ten-to-one

share consolidation effective on 10 May 2010.

Note: Mr. Chu Nin Yiu, Stephen is also a substantial shareholder of the Company.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

At 31st July, 2010 and 2009, the Company had no reserve available for distribution to shareholders.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
Sio Tak Hong (Chairman)
Chu Nin Yiu, Stephen (Chief Executive Officer)
Chu Nin Wai, David (Deputy Chairman)
Lau Chi Kan, Michael

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Leung Kam Fai
Wong Kwong Fat
Li Sze Kuen, Billy

In accordance with Article 103(A) of the Company’s Articles of Association, Lau Chi Kan, Michael and Li Sze Kuen,
Billy retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The term of office of each independent non-executive director is the period up to his retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association.

No directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive directors, an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“the Listing Rules”). The Company considers all the independent non-executive directors are
independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31st July, 2010, the interests of the directors and the chief executive and their associates in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies,
were as follows:

Long positions

(I) The Company

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company

Number of shares held

Personal
interest Family interest Corporated Percentage of
(held as (interests of interest (interest the issued

beneficial spouse or child of controlled share capital
Name of Director owners) under 18) corporation) Total of the Company

Sio Tak Hong (“Mr. Sio”) — 24,491,000 800,000,000 824,491,000 38.4%
(Note 1)

Chu Nin Yiu, Stephen 11,700,000 — 333,447,400 345,147,400 16.0%
(“Mr. Chu”) (Note 2)

Lau Chi Kan, Michael 7,500 — — 7,500 0.0%

Notes:

1. Mr. Sio was deemed to be interested in the 800,000,000 shares in the Company held through Fullkeen Holdings

Limited (“Fullkeen”), which is in turn 70% owned by Mr. Sio.

2. Mr. Chu was deemed to be interested in the 333,447,400 shares in the Company held through Supervalue

Holdings Limited (“Supervalue”), which is in turn wholly owned by Mr. Chu.
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(II) Associated corporation

Number of shares held

Percentage of
Family Interest Corporated interest the issued

Personal interest (interests of (interest of share capital of
Name of Associated (held as spouse or controlled the associated
Director corporation beneficial owner) child under 18) corporation) Total corporation

Mr. Sio Tin Fok Holdings — — 1,100 1,100 55.0%
Company Limited (Note)

Note: Mr. Sio was deemed to be interested in the 1,100 shares in the associated corporation held through Global

Master Management Limited, which is in turn 70% owned by Mr. Sio.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors, chief executive nor their associates had any interests or
short position in any shares or underlying shares of the Company or any of its associated corporations as at
31st July, 2010.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than as disclosed in the section of “Share options”, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate and neither the directors
nor any of their spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities of the
Company, or had exercised any such right.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Other than as disclosed under the heading “Related Party Disclosures” as set out in note 42 to the consolidated
financial statements, there were no contracts of significance to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries, was
a party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, Mr. Sio, the Chairman and executive director of the Company, held share interests and/or
directorships in Sociedale de Empreendimentos Nam Van, S.A. (南灣發展股份有限公司) and other companies
which are principally engaged in property investment and development in Macau and Mainland China. Mr. Sio is
therefore considered to have interests in businesses which compete or are likely to compete with the businesses
of the Group pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

As the businesses of the Company and the above entities are operated under separate management with no
reliance (whether financial or business) on each other, the Group is able to operates its businesses independently
of, and at arm’s length from the competing entities.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31st July, 2010, the register of substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to section 336
of the SFO showed that the following shareholders had notified the Company of relevant interests in the issued
share capital of the Company:

Long positions

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the Company

Number of shares held

Personal
interest Family interest Corporated Percentage of
(held as (interests of interest (interest the issued

beneficial spouse or child of controlled share capital
Name of shareholder owners) under 18) corporation) Total of the Company

Fullkeen 800,000,000 — — 800,000,000 37.3%

Mr. Sio — 24,491,000 800,000,000 824,491,000 38.4%
(Note 1)

Supervalue 333,447,400 — — 333,447,400 15.5%

Mr. Chu 11,700,000 — 333,447,400 345,147,400 16.0%
(Note 2)

Notes:

1. Mr. Sio was deemed to be interested in the 800,000,000 shares in the Company held through Fullkeen, which is in turn

70% owned by Mr. Sio.

2. Mr. Chu was deemed to be interested in the 333,447,400 shares in the Company held through Supervalue, which is in

turn wholly owned by Mr. Chu.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been notified of any other relevant interests or short positions
in the issued share capital of the Company as at 31st July, 2010.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Pursuant to Appendix 23 of the Listing Rules, details of corporate governance report are set out on pages 7 to 9
of the Annual Report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the board of directors on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the directors of the Company are decided by the board of directors after recommendation
from the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the time commitment and responsibilities of the directors, the
Company’s operating results, individual performance and comparable market statistics.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year ended 31st July, 2010.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Sio Tak Hong
Chairman

4th November, 2010
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TO THE MEMBERS OF CAPITAL ESTATE LIMITED
冠中地產有限公司
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Capital Estate Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 18 to 76, which comprise the consolidated and Company’s
statements of financial position as at 31st July, 2010, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are
reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit and to
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31st July, 2010 and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

4th November, 2010
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2010 2009
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000

Revenue 5 108,433 48,174
Cost of sales (58,630) (28,533)

Gross profit 49,803 19,641
Other gains (losses) 6 6,400 (38,934)
Other income 3,591 5,081
Distribution and marketing expenses (1,830) (716)
Administrative expenses (63,672) (38,957)
Other operating expenses (39,403) (23,222)
Increase (decrease) in fair value of investment

properties 4,240 (4,490)
Share of losses of associates (2,382) (1,886)
Finance costs 8 (9,765) (9,708)
Impairment loss recognised on available-for-sale

investments — (10,040)
Impairment loss recognised on properties for

development (20,000) (54,033)
Impairment loss recognised on goodwill — (71,079)

Loss before taxation (73,018) (228,343)
Taxation 9 2,351 —

Loss for the year 10 (70,667) (228,343)

Other comprehensive income
Exchange differences arising on translation 4,230 2,811

Total comprehensive expense for the year (66,437) (225,532)

Loss for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company (70,209) (227,224)
Non-controlling interests (458) (1,119)

(70,667) (228,343)

Total comprehensive expense attributable to:
Owners of the Company (65,979) (224,413)
Non-controlling interests (458) (1,119)

(66,437) (225,532)

Loss per share 13
Basic — HK cents (3.28) (16.69)
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2010 2009
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000

Non-current assets
Investment properties 14 36,400 32,160
Property, plant and equipment 15 433,842 461,292
Prepaid lease payments 16 12,807 13,112
Premium on prepaid lease payments 17 186,021 190,268
Interests in associates 19 221,331 223,713
Available-for-sale investments 20 59,850 59,850
Convertible bond 21 — 41,845
Derivative component in convertible bond 21 — 6,883

950,251 1,029,123

Current assets
Amounts due from associates 22 2,722 99
Properties for development 23 227,200 247,000
Inventories 24 2,634 2,599
Trade and other receivables 25 6,725 8,413
Prepaid lease payments 16 407 403
Investments held for trading 26 50,372 32,345
Pledged bank deposits 27 641 641
Restricted bank deposits 27 — 947
Bank balances and cash 27 32,956 40,905

323,657 333,352

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 28 27,082 20,050
Amount due to a related party 22 5,713 —
Derivative financial instruments 29 — 1,056
Taxation payable 25,548 25,548
Bank borrowings — due within one year 30 11,866 6,110

70,209 52,764

Net current assets 253,448 280,588

Total assets less current liabilities 1,203,699 1,309,711

Non-current liabilities
Bank borrowings — due after one year 30 133,718 144,377
Consideration payable for acquisition of subsidiaries 31 80,277 113,593
Deferred tax liabilities 33 68,728 71,079

282,723 329,049

Net assets 920,976 980,662
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2010 2009
NOTE HK$’000 HK$’000

Capital and reserves
Share capital 34 214,839 212,899
Reserves 703,849 765,017

Equity attributable to owners of the Company 918,688 977,916
Non-controlling interests 2,288 2,746

Total equity 920,976 980,662

The consolidated financial statements on pages 18 to 76 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 4th November, 2010 and are signed on its behalf by:

Sio Tak Hong Chu Nin Yiu, Stephen
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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2010 2009
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000

Non-current asset
Investments in subsidiaries 18 400 400
Amounts due from subsidiaries 18 1,109,101 1,095,601

1,109,501 1,096,001

Current assets
Other receivables — 176
Bank balances and cash 27 8,710 27,686

8,710 27,862

Current liabilities
Other payables 2,568 3,261
Amounts due to subsidiaries 32 105,702 42,040

108,270 45,301

Net current liabilities (99,560) (17,439)

Total assets less current liabilities 1,009,941 1,078,562

Non-current liability
Consideration payable for acquisition of subsidiaries 31 80,277 113,593

Net assets 929,664 964,969

Capital and reserves
Share capital 34 214,839 212,899
Reserves 36 714,825 752,070

Total equity 929,664 964,969

Sio Tak Hong Chu Nin Yiu, Stephen
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
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Attributable to owners of the Company

Share Capital Capital Non-
Share Share Capital option reduction Translation redemption Revaluation Accumulated controlling

capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Balance at 1st August, 2008 132,869 868,904 157 23,542 170,583 — 268 9,200 (203,672) 1,001,851 3,765 1,005,616
Loss for the year — — — — — — — — (227,224) (227,224) (1,119) (228,343)
Exchange differences arising

on translation — — — — — 2,811 — — — 2,811 — 2,811

Total comprehensive income
and expense for the year — — — — — 2,811 — — (227,224) (224,413) (1,119) (225,532)

Issue of shares (note 34a) 80,000 120,000 — — — — — — — 200,000 — 200,000
Expenses incurred in connection

with issue of shares — (1,576) — — — — — — — (1,576) — (1,576)
Exercise of share options

(note 34b) 30 104 — (30) — — — — — 104 — 104
Recognition of equity-settled

share-based payment — — — 1,950 — — — — — 1,950 — 1,950
Contribution from a

non-controlling shareholder — — — — — — — — — — 100 100

Balance at 31st July, 2009 212,899 987,432 157 25,462 170,583 2,811 268 9,200 (430,896) 977,916 2,746 980,662

Loss for the year — — — — — — — — (70,209) (70,209) (458) (70,667)
Exchange differences arising

on translation — — — — — 4,230 — — — 4,230 — 4,230

Total comprehensive income
and expense for the year — — — — — 4,230 — — (70,209) (65,979) (458) (66,437)

Exercise of share option
(note 34c) 1,940 6,731 — (1,920) — — — — — 6,751 — 6,751

Balance at 31st July, 2010 214,839 994,163 157 23,542 170,583 7,041 268 9,200 (501,105) 918,688 2,288 920,976
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2010 2009
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before taxation (73,018) (228,343)
Adjustments for:

Impairment loss recognised on goodwill — 71,079
Impairment loss recognised on properties for

development 20,000 54,033
Impairment loss recognised on available-for-sale

investments — 10,040
Depreciation 33,151 19,605
Finance costs 9,765 9,708
(Increase) decrease in fair value of investment

properties (4,240) 4,490
Release of prepaid lease payments and

premium on prepaid lease payments 6,252 3,617
Share-based payment expense — 1,950
Share of losses of associates 2,382 1,886
Written off of property, plant and equipment 8,557 —
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 279 372
Interest income (3,345) (5,020)
Loss on early redemption/change in fair value relating

to convertible bond 21 5,403 (3,087)

Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital 5,186 (59,670)

Increase in properties for development (200) —
(Increase) decrease in inventories (14) 263
Decrease (increase) in trade and other receivables 1,744 (2,657)
(Increase) decrease in investments held for trading (18,027) 71,067
Increase (decrease) in trade and other payables 7,204 (8,430)
(Decrease) increase in derivative financial instruments (1,056) 259

Cash (used in) generated from operations (5,163) 832
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid — (8,738)

NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES (5,163) (7,906)

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Redemption (subscription) of a convertible bond 44,000 (43,780)
Interest received 2,670 3,159
Decrease in restricted bank deposits 947 5,280
Proceed from disposal of property, plant and equipment 216 330
Advance to associates (2,623) (54)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (10,957) (9,739)
Payment of consideration payable for acquisition

of subsidiaries (33,316) (170,389)
Acquisition of subsidiaries 37 — 13,398
Dividend received from an associate — 8,125

NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING ACTIVITIES 937 (193,670)
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2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$’000

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Interest paid (9,997) (8,388)
Repayment of bank loans (6,161) (2,263)
Proceeds from exercise of share options 6,751 104
Advance from a related company 5,713 —
Proceeds from issue of shares — 200,000
Bank loans raised — 152,750
Short term loan raised — 23,780
Capital contributed by a minority shareholder of a subsidiary — 100
Repayment of loans from related parties — (136,456)
Repayment of short term loan — (23,780)
Expenses paid in connection with issue of shares — (1,576)
Repayment of obligation under a finance lease — (362)

NET CASH (USED IN) FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (3,694) 203,909

(DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS (7,920) 2,333

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS BROUGHT FORWARD 40,905 39,743

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES (29) (1,171)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CARRIED FORWARD 32,956 40,905

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

Bank balances and cash 32,956 40,905
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1. GENERAL

The Company is a public limited company incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The address of the registered office and principal place of the
Company is 17/F., Asia Orient Tower, Town Place, 33 Lockhart Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong.

The Company acts as a property and investment holding company. The activities of its principal subsidiaries
and associates are set out in notes 18 and 19 respectively.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and revised standards, amendments and
interpretations (“new and revised HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), which are or have become effective.

Hong Kong Accounting Standard Presentation of Financial Statements
(“HKAS”) 1 (Revised 2007)

HKAS 23 (Revised 2007) Borrowing Costs
HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
HKAS 32 & 1 (Amendments) Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising

on Liquidation
HKAS 39 (Amendment) Eligible Hedged Items
HKFRS 1 & HKAS 27 Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled

(Amendments) Entity or Associate
HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Vesting Conditions and Cancellations
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations
HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments
HK(IFRIC) — Int 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate
HK(IFRIC) — Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation
HK(IFRIC) — Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners
HK(IFRIC) — Int 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers
HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2008
HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs issued in 2009 in relation

to the amendments to HKFRS2, HKAS 38, paragraph 80 of
HKAS 39, HK(IFRIC) — Int 9 and HK(IFRIC) — Int 16

Except as described below, the adoption of the new and revised HKFRSs had no material effect on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the current or prior accounting periods.

HKAS 1 (Revised 2007) has introduced terminology changes (including revised titles for the consolidated
financial statements) and changes in the format and content of the financial statements.

HKFRS 8 is a disclosure standard that has resulted in redesignation of the Group’s reportable segments
(see note 7) and changes in the basis of measurement of segment profit or loss, segment assets and
segment liabilities.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 7 expand the disclosures required in relation to fair value measurements in
respect of financial instruments which are measured at fair value. The Group has not provided comparative
information for expanded disclosures in accordance with the transitional provision set out in the amendments.

HKFRS 3 (Revised) affects the Group’s accounting for business combination for which the acquisition date
is on or after 1st August, 2009. The requirements in HKAS 27 (Revised) in relation to accounting for changes
in ownership interests in a subsidiary after control is obtained and for loss of control of a subsidiary are also
applied prospectively by the Group for transactions on or after 1st August 2009. As there was no transaction
during the current financial year in which HKFRS 3 (Revised) and HKAS 27 (Revised) are applicable, the
application of HKFRS 3 (Revised), HKAS 27 (Revised) and the consequential amendments to other HKFRSs
had no effect on the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the current or prior accounting
period. Accordingly, no prior year adjustment has been recognised.

In previous years, the Group expensed all borrowing costs that were directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying asset when they were incurred. HKAS 23 (Revised 2007) removes
the option previously available to expense all borrowing costs when incurred. The adoption of HKAS 23
(Revised 2007) has resulted in the Group changing its accounting policy to capitalise all such borrowing
costs as part of the cost of the qualifying asset. The Group has applied the revised accounting policy to
borrowing costs relating to qualifying assets for which the commencement date for capitalisation is on or
after 1st August 2009 in accordance with the transitional provisions in HKAS 23 (Revised 2007). As the
revised accounting policy has been applied prospectively from 1st August 2009, this change in accounting
policy has not resulted in restatement of amounts reported in respect of prior accounting periods. In the
current year, the Group has not incurred material borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised standards, amendments and interpretations
that have been issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 2009 1

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 2010  2

HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures 6

HKAS 32 (Amendment) Classification of Rights Issues 4

HKFRS 1 (Amendment) Additional Exemptions for First-time Adopters 3

HKFRS 1 (Amendment) Limited Exemption from Comparative HKFRS 7
Disclosures for First-time Adopters 5

HKFRS 2 (Amendment) Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transactions 4

HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Disclosures — Transfer of Financial Assets 8

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 7

HK(IFRIC) — Int 14 (Amendment) Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement 6

HK(IFRIC) — Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity Instruments 5

1 Amendments that are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2010.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2010 and 1st January, 2011, as appropriate.
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2010.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st February, 2010.
5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2010.
6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2011.
7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 2013.
8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2011.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” introduces new requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial assets and will be effective for the Group’s financial year commencing from 1st August 2013, with
earlier application permitted. The Standard requires all recognised financial assets that are within the scope
of HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” to be measured at either amortised
cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that (i) are held within a business model whose objective is
to collect the contractual cash flows and (ii) have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at fair value. The application of HKFRS 9 might affect the classification
and measurement of the Group’s financial assets.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the other new and revised standards,
amendments or interpretations will have no material impact on the consolidated financial statements.

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for investment
properties and certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where the Company has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as
appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies in line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are presented separately from the
Group’s equity therein. Non-controlling interests in the net assets consist of the amount of those interests
at the date of the original business combination and the share of changes in equity by non-controlling
interests since the date of the combination.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Allocation of total comprehensive income to non-controlling interests

Total comprehensive income and expense of a subsidiary is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
Prior to 1st August, 2009, losses applicable to the non-controlling interests in excess of the non-controlling
interests in the subsidiary’s equity were allocated against the interests of the Group except to the extent
that the non-controlling interests had a binding obligation and were able to make an additional investment
to cover the losses.

Business combinations

Business combinations prior to 1st August, 2009

Acquisitions of businesses were accounted for using the purchase method. The cost of the acquisition was
measured at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or
assumed, and equity instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree, plus any
costs directly attributable to the business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities that met the relevant conditions for recognition were recognised at their fair values at
the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition was recognised as an asset and initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the cost of the business combination over the Group’s interest in the net fair value of the identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised. If, after assessment, the Group’s interest in the net
fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeded the cost of the
business combination, the excess was recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The non-controlling interest in the acquiree was initially measured at the non-controlling interest’s proportion
of the net fair value of the assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities recognised.

Business combinations on or after 1st August, 2009

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration transferred
in a business combination is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date
fair values of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to former owners of the
acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-
related costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Business combinations on or after 1st August, 2009 (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the
conditions for recognition under HKFRS 3 (Revised) are recognised at their fair values, except that:

• deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively;

• liabilities or equity instruments related to the replacement by the Group of an acquiree’s share-
based payment awards are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment ; and

• assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that
Standard.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed. If, after reassessment, the Group’s interest in the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests may be initially measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost less any accumulated impairment losses
and is presented separately in the consolidated statement of financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill arising from an acquisition is allocated to each of the
relevant cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the acquisition. A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, and whenever there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a financial year, the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment before the end of that financial year. When the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit first, and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata on the
basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included
in the determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company’s statement of financial position at cost less any
identified impairment loss. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy discussions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in associates are carried in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the
Group’s share of the net assets of the associates, less any identified impairment loss. When the Group’s
share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and a
liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of that associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised as
goodwill. The goodwill is included within the carrying amount of the investment and is not tested for
impairment separately. Instead, the entire carrying amount of the investment is tested for impairment as a
single asset. Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that forms
part of the carrying amount of the investment in the associate. Any reversal of impairment loss is recognised
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently increases.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and losses are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant associate.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

On initial recognition, investment properties are measured at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured at their fair values using
the fair value model. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment property are
included in profit or loss for the year in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use or no future economic benefits are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising
on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment other than construction
in progress over their estimated useful lives and after taking into account of their estimated residual value,
using the straight-line method.

Construction in progress includes property, plant and equipment in the course of construction for production
or for its own use purposes. Construction in progress is carried at cost less any recognised impairment
loss. Construction in progress is classified to the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as
owned assets or, where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the item) is included in profit or loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.

Properties for development

Properties for development represent leasehold land located in Macau for development for future sale in
the ordinary course of business. Cost comprises the costs of land use rights and other costs directly
attributable to bringing the leasehold land to the condition necessary for it to be ready for development.
Properties for development are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Prepaid lease payments

The up-front payments to acquire leasehold interest in land are accounted for as operating leases and are
stated at cost and amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Premium on prepaid lease payments

Premium on prepaid lease payments of leasehold land represents premium on acquisition of prepaid lease
payments of land use rights as a result of acquisition of subsidiaries, which are stated at cost and amortised
on the same basis as the related land use rights.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts
receivable for goods sold and services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and
sales related taxes.

Revenue from hotel operation, which comprise room rental, food and beverage sales and other ancillary
services in the hotel, are recognised when the relevant services have been rendered.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Others

Sales of trading securities are recognised when the related bought and sold contract notes are executed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipt through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the Group’ rights to receive payment have been
established.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale
for which the commencement date for capitalisation is on or after 1st August, 2009, are added to the cost
of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is calculated using the weighted
average method.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group at their fair value at the inception of
the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the
lessor is included in the consolidated statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation. Lease
payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve
a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly to
profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s general policy on borrowing costs (see above).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Operating leases payment are recognised as an expenses on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised
as a reduction of rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

Impairment losses on tangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible assets to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimate to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years, and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries
and associates, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising
from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the
end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax
is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to items that recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity, transactions in currencies other than
the functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional currency
(i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when
the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the year except for
exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and
losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive income, in which cases, the exchange differences
are also recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
foreign operations are translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the
rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting period, and their income and expenses are translated
at the average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period,
in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (the translation
reserve).
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees after 1st April, 2005

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair value of share options granted at the
grant date is recognised as an expense in full at the grant date when the share options granted vest
immediately, with a corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve).

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share option reserve will continue to
be held in share option reserve.

Retirement benefit scheme contributions

Payments to defined contribution scheme and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) are
charged as expenses when employees have rendered services entitling them to the contributions.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of the three categories, including financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets. All
regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets
classified as at FVTPL, of which interest income is included in net gains or losses.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

• it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near future; or

• it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that the Group manages together and has
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

• it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value with changes in fair value arising from remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss excludes any dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including debt component
of convertible bond, amounts due from associates, trade and other receivables, pledged bank deposits,
restricted bank deposits and bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial
assets below).

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated or not classified as financial
assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by
delivery of such unquoted equity instruments, they are measured at cost less any identified impairment
losses at the end of each reporting period (see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below).

Convertible bond

Convertible bond that contain both the loans and receivables and conversion option components is classified
separately into respective items on initial recognition. Loans and receivables are non derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. At the end of each
reporting period subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses. The derivative component is measured
at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of each
reporting period. Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash flows
of the financial assets have been affected.

For an available-for sale equity investment, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment
below its cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could include:

• significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

• default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

• it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade receivables, assets that are assessed not to be
impaired individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of
impairment for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of collecting payments,
an increase in the number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit period of 30 days,
observable changes in national or local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there
is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in
subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets
with the exception of trade and other receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through the use of
an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or
loss. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment losses
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not be reversed in profit or loss in subsequent
periods. Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in revaluation reserve. For available-for-sale debt investments, impairment losses
are subsequently reversed if an increase in the fair value of the investment can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the group after
deducting all of its liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis other than those financial liability classified as
FVTPL, of which the interest expense is included in net gains or losses.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

• it has been incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the near future; or

• it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that the Group manages together and has
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

• it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes in fair value arising on remeasurement
recognised directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss includes any interest paid on the financial liabilities.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including trade and other payables, amount due to a related party, bank borrowings
and consideration payable for acquisition of subsidiaries are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (Continued)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging
instruments, in which event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the
hedge relationship.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire or, the
financial assets are transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss. If the Group retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial
asset and recognise a collateralised borrowing for proceeds received.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the relevant contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In application of the Group’s accounting policies, management makes various estimates based on past
experiences, expectations of the future and other information. The key sources of estimation uncertainty
that may significantly affect the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements in the next
financial year are disclosed below:

Estimated impairment on available-for-sale investments

Management reviews the recoverability of the Group’s available-for-sale investments with reference to current
market environment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of
the assets exceeds their corresponding recoverable amounts. Appropriate impairment for estimated
irrecoverable amounts are recognised in profit and loss when there is objective evidence that the asset is
impaired.

In determining whether impairment on available-for-sale investments is required, the Group takes into
consideration the current market environment and the estimates of future cash flows which the Group
expect to receive. Impairment is recognised based on the present value of estimated future cash flows. If
the market environment/circumstances changes significantly, resulting in a decrease in the recoverable
amount of these available-for-sale investments, additional impairment loss may be required.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Income taxes

As at 31st July, 2010, a deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of HK$12,039,000 (2009:
HK$11,010,000) of tax losses in the Group’s statement of financial position. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised on the tax losses of HK$216,219,000 (2009: HK$152,873,000) due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient
future taxable profits or taxable temporary differences will be available in the future. In cases where the
actual future taxable profits generated are less than expected, a material reversal of deferred tax assets
may arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss in the period in which such a reversal takes places.

Properties for development

An assessment of the net realisable value is made in each reporting periods. The Group takes into
consideration the current market environment and the estimated market value of the properties (i.e. the
estimated selling price less estimated costs selling expenses) less estimated costs to completion of the
properties . If the market environment/circumstances changes significantly, resulting in a decrease/increase
in the net realisable value, additional/reversal written down may be required. In the current year, an impairment
loss of HK$20,000,000 (2009: HK$54,033,000) has been recognised in profit and loss.

5. REVENUE

An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as follows:

2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$’000

Property rental 568 568
Hotel operations 107,865 47,606

108,433 48,174

6. OTHER GAINS (LOSSES)

2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$’000

Net profit (loss) on investments held for trading 10,984 (40,732)
Net profit (loss) on derivative financial instruments 457 (2,595)
Loss on early redemption/change in fair value relating

to convertible bond (5,403) 3,087
Dividend income from investments held for trading 362 1,306

6,400 (38,934)
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has adopted HKFRS 8 “Operating Segments” with effect from 1st August 2009. HKFRS 8
requires operating segments to be identified on the basis of internal reports about components of the
Group that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision maker (i.e., the executive directors of the
Company) in order to allocate resources to segments and to assess their performance. In contrast, the
predecessor standard (HKAS 14, “Segment Reporting”) required an entity to identify two sets of segments
(business and geographical) using a risks and returns approach. In the past, the Group’s primary reporting
format was business segments. The application of HKFRS 8 has resulted in a redesignation of the Group’s
operating segments as compared with the primary segments determined in accordance with HKAS 14.

In prior years, the primary segment information was analysed on the basis of the types of goods and
services supplied by the Group’s operating divisions, namely property rental, financial investment, property
development and sale and hotel operations. However, for the property operations, the chief operating
decision maker reviews the financial information of the property rental and property development and sale
altogether. Therefore, the property operations are disclosed as one operating segment.

The Group’s operating segments under HKFRS 8 are therefore as follows:

Property — leasing of properties and sale of properties held for sale and property
under development

Financial investment — trading of listed securities and derivative financial instruments
Hotel operations — hotel business and its related services

Information regarding these segments is reported below. Amounts reported for the prior period have been
restated to conform to the requirements of HKFRS 8.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by operating segments:

For the year ended 31st July, 2010

Financial Hotel
Property investment operations Consolidated
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

GROSS PROCEEDS 568 118,480 107,865 226,913

SEGMENT REVENUE 568 — 107,865 108,433

SEGMENT (LOSS) PROFIT (16,838) 7,532 (31,829) (41,135)

Unallocated income 2,051
Unallocated expenses (21,787)
Share of loss of associates (2,382)
Finance costs (9,765)

Loss before taxation (73,018)

For the year ended 31st July, 2009

Financial Hotel
Property investment operations Consolidated
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

GROSS PROCEEDS 568 89,699 47,606 137,873

SEGMENT REVENUE 568 — 47,606 48,174

SEGMENT LOSS (59,402) (39,993) (88,964) (188,359)

Unallocated income 1,366
Unallocated expenses (29,756)
Share of loss of associates (1,886)
Finance costs (9,708)

Loss before taxation (228,343)

Segment profit (loss) represents the profit (loss) earned by each segment without allocation of central
administration costs, directors’ salaries, share of loss of associates, certain investment income and finance
costs. This is the measure reported to the chief operating decisions maker for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by operating segments:

At 31st July, 2010

Financial Hotel
Property investment operations Unallocated Consolidated
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

ASSETS
Segment assets 263,959 50,372 653,431 — 967,762
Interests in associates — — — 221,331 221,331
Unallocated corporate assets — — — 84,815 84,815

Consolidated total assets 1,273,908

LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities 5,265 2,411 92,027 — 99,703
Unallocated corporate liabilities — — — 253,229 253,229

Consolidated total liabilities 352,932

At 31st July, 2009

Financial Hotel
Property investment operations Unallocated Consolidated
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

ASSETS
Segment assets 279,619 82,806 675,140 — 1,037,565
Interests in associates — — — 223,713 223,713
Unallocated corporate assets — — — 101,197 101,197

Consolidated total assets 1,362,475

LIABILITIES
Segment liabilities 3,830 1,056 81,437 — 86,323
Unallocated corporate liabilities — — — 295,490 295,490

Consolidated total liabilities 381,813

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and allocating resources between segments:

• all assets are allocated to operating segments other than interests in associates, available-for-sales
investments, certain property, plant and equipment, certain debtors, deposits and prepayments of
the corporate offices, bank balances and cash, pledged bank deposits and restricted bank deposits;
and

• all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other than deposits and accrued charges of the
corporate offices, taxation payable, bank borrowings, consideration payable for acquisition of
subsidiaries and deferred tax liabilities.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Other information

Amounts included in the measure of segment results and segment assets:

For the year ended 31st July, 2010

Financial Hotel Segment
Property investment operations total Unallocated Consolidated
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Capital additions — — 8,688 8,688 2,269 10,957
Depreciation — — 31,267 31,267 1,884 33,151
Increase in fair value of investment

properties 4,240 — — 4,240 — 4,240
Impairment loss recognised on

properties for development 20,000 — — 20,000 — 20,000
Release of prepaid lease payments and

premium on prepaid lease payments — — 6,252 6,252 — 6,252
Net profit on investments held for trading — 10,984 — 10,984 — 10,984
Net profit on derivative financial

instruments — 457 — 457 — 457
Written off of property, plant and

equipment — — 8,557 8,557 — 8,557
Interest income — 1,265 30 1,295 2,050 3,345
Loss arisen from convertible bond — 5,403 — 5,403 — 5,403

For the year ended 31st July, 2009

Financial Hotel Segment
Property investment operations total Unallocated Consolidated
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Capital additions — — 472,618 472,618 3,152 475,770
Depreciation — — 18,256 18,256 1,349 19,605
Decrease in fair value of investment

properties 4,490 — — 4,490 — 4,490
Impairment loss recognised on

properties for development 54,033 — — 54,033 — 54,033
Impairment loss recognised on goodwill — — 71,079 71,079 — 71,079
Release of prepaid lease payments and

premium on prepaid lease payments — — 3,617 3,617 — 3,617
Net loss on investments held for trading — 40,732 — 40,732 — 40,732
Net loss on derivative financial

instruments — 2,595 — 2,595 — 2,595
Loss on disposal of property, plant

and equipment — — 372 372 — 372
Interest income — 3,612 42 3,654 1,366 5,020
Increase in fair value of derivative

component in convertible bond — 3,087 — 3,087 — 3,087
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical information

The Group’s current operations are mainly located in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Macau. The Group’s
property development and sale division are carried out in Hong Kong and Macau. Financial investment
division and property rental business are all located and carried out in Hong Kong. Hotel operations are all
located and carried out in Mainland China.

The Group’s revenue from external customers based on the location of customers and information about
its non-current assets by geographical location of the assets are detailed below:

Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets

2010 2009 2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Hong Kong 568 568 50,963 45,980
Macau — — 209,269 211,646
Mainland China 107,865 47,606 630,169 662,919

108,433 48,174 890,401 920,545

Non-current assets excluded available-for-sale investments, convertible bond and derivative component in
convertible bond.

Information about major customers

No revenue from customers contributes over 10% of the total sales of the Group for any of the two years
ended 31st July, 2010.
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Major revenue by services and investments

2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$’000

Room rentals 41,117 15,498
Food and beverage sales 38,463 16,219
Rendering of ancillary services 27,926 15,889
Property rental 927 568

108,433 48,174

8. FINANCE COSTS

2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$’000

Interest on:

Borrowings wholly repayable within five years:
Bank borrowings 7,745 3,978
Consideration payable for acquisition of subsidiaries 2,020 3,196
Other borrowing — 2,526
Finance leases — 8

9,765 9,708
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9. TAXATION

2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$’000

The credit comprises:

Deferred taxation (note 33) 2,351 —

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% for both years.

PRC Enterprise Income Tax is calculated at the applicable rates in accordance with the relevant laws and
regulations in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”). Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated
at the rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax and Enterprise Income Tax in PRC subsidiaries has been made for
both years as the Company and its subsidiaries either did not generate any assessable profits for the years
or have available tax losses brought forward from prior years to offset against any assessable profits generated
during the years.

The tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss before taxation per the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as follows:

2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$’000

Loss before taxation (73,018) (228,343)

Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% (12,048) (37,677)
Tax effect of share of results of associates 393 311
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose 4,564 22,062
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose (1,292) (631)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 11,698 9,226
Tax effect of deductible temporary differences not recognised 3,300 8,915
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating

in other jurisdictions (3,189) (2,206)
Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised (1,075) —

Tax credit for the year 2,351 —

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 33.
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10. LOSS FOR THE YEAR

2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$’000

Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging (crediting):

Directors’ remuneration (note 11) 3,712 5,464
Other staff costs, excluding directors

— Salaries and other benefits 30,951 18,218
— Retirement benefit scheme contributions 2,009 1,223
— Share-based payment expenses — 198

Total employee benefit expenses 36,672 25,103

Auditor’s remuneration:
Current year 1,650 1,480
Underprovision in prior years — 80

Depreciation (included in other operating expenses) 33,151 19,605
Release of prepaid lease payments and premium on

prepaid lease payments (included in other operating expenses) 6,252 3,617
Net exchange loss 1,484 56
Cost of hotel inventories recognised as an expense 20,197 8,805

Gross rental income from investment properties 568 568
Less:

direct operating expenses from investment properties
that generated rental income during the year (309) (255)

direct operating expenses from investment properties
that did not generate rental income during the year (1,198) (1,058)

(939) (745)

Bank and other interest income (2,670) (3,159)
Accretion interest income on convertible bond (675) (1,861)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 279 372
Written off of property, plant and equipment 8,557 —
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11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to each of the seven (2009: seven) directors are as follows:

2010

Mr. Sio Mr. Chu Mr. Chu Mr. Lau Mr. Li
Tak Nin Yiu, Nin Wai, Chi Kan, Mr. Leung Mr. Wong Sze Kuen,

Hong Stephen David Michael Kam Fai Kwong Fat Billy Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Fees — — — — 150 150 150 450
Other emoluments

— Salaries and
 other benefits — 3,250 — — — — — 3,250

— Retirement
 benefit scheme
 contributions — 12 — — — — — 12

— 3,262 — — 150 150 150 3,712

2009

Mr. Sio Mr. Chu Mr. Chu Mr. Lau Mr. Li
Tak Nin Yiu, Nin Wai, Chi Kan, Mr. Leung Mr. Wong Sze Kuen,

Hong Stephen David Michael Kam Fai Kwong Fat Billy Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Fees — — — — 150 150 150 450
Other emoluments

— Salaries and
 other benefits — 3,250 — — — — — 3,250

— Retirement
 benefit scheme
 contributions — 12 — — — — — 12

— Share-based
 payment expenses — 1,158 — — 198 198 198 1,752

— 4,420 — — 348 348 348 5,464

During the years ended 31st July, 2010 and 2009, no directors waived any emoluments.
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12. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Of the five highest paid individuals in the Group, one (2009: one) was director of the Company whose
emoluments was included in note 11 above. The emoluments of the remaining four (2009: four) employees
were as follows:

2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$’000

Salaries and other benefits 1,957 1,793
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 36 38

1,993 1,831

Their emoluments were within the following bands:

2010 2009
No. of No. of

employees employees

Nil to HK$1,000,000 4 4

During the reporting period ended 31st July, 2010, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the five
highest paid individuals, including directors, as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office (2009: Nil).

13. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the following data:

2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$’000

Loss for the year attributable to owners of the Company
for the purpose of basic loss per share (70,209) (227,224)

2010 2009
(restated)

Number of shares:
Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the

purpose of basic loss per share (note) 2,137,815,169 1,361,568,868

Note: The weighted average of ordinary shares for the purpose of calculating basic loss per share for both years have

been retrospectively adjusted for the effect of share consolidation completed in May 2010 (note 34(d)).

No diluted loss per share had been presented for both years because the exercise of the share options
would result in a decrease in loss per share.
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

HK$’000

AT FAIR VALUE
At 1st August, 2008 36,650
Decrease in fair value (4,490)

At 31st July, 2009 32,160
Increase in fair value 4,240

At 31st July, 2010 36,400

The carrying value of investment properties shown above comprises:

2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$’000

Investment properties in Hong Kong:
Long-term lease 4,500 3,500
Medium-term lease 31,900 28,660

36,400 32,160

All of the Group’s property interests held under operating leases to earn rentals are measured using the fair
value model and are classified and accounted for as investment properties.

The fair values of the Group’s investment properties at 31st July, 2010 and 2009 have been arrived at on
the basis of valuation carried out on that date by American Appraisals China Limited and Norton Appraisals
Limited respectively, which both are independent professionally qualified valuers not connected with the
Group. The valuation was arrived at by reference to market evidence of transaction prices for similar
properties.
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Furniture,
Hotel Leasehold fixtures and Motor Construction

properties Buildings improvements equipment vehicle in progress Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

THE GROUP
COST
At 1st August, 2008 — — 1,387 471 2,094 — 3,952
Acquired on acquisition of

subsidiaries 337,243 2,778 101,133 23,297 1,580 — 466,031
Additions 5,308 — 2,236 738 1,457 — 9,739
Disposals — — (346) — (702) — (1,048)
Currency realignment 1,996 52 618 141 5 — 2,812

At 31st July, 2009 344,547 2,830 105,028 24,647 4,434 — 481,486
Additions — — 19 920 2,536 7,482 10,957
Disposals — — — (809) (472) — (1,281)
Written-off (9,023) — — — — — (9,023)
Currency realignment 2,790 72 867 201 16 — 3,946

At 31st July, 2010 338,314 2,902 105,914 24,959 6,514 7,482 486,085

DEPRECIATION
At 1st August, 2008 — — 183 228 524 — 935
Provided for the year 5,909 54 9,199 3,639 804 — 19,605
Disposals — — (346) — — — (346)

At 31st July, 2009 5,909 54 9,036 3,867 1,328 — 20,194
Provided for the year 10,371 95 14,992 6,316 1,377 — 33,151
Disposals — — — (481) (305) — (786)
Written-off (466) — — — — — (466)
Currency realignment 48 1 69 30 2 — 150

At 31st July, 2010 15,862 150 24,097 9,732 2,402 — 52,243

CARRYING VALUES
At 31st July, 2010 322,452 2,752 81,817 15,227 4,112 7,482 433,842

At 31st July, 2009 338,638 2,776 95,992 20,780 3,106 — 461,292

The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following
rates per annum.

Hotel properties Over 331/2 years, representing the remaining lease term
from acquisition date

Buildings Over 91/4 years to 30 years, representing the remaining
lease terms from acquisition date

Leasehold improvements Over the term of the relevant lease or 10% - 331/3%
whichever is shorter

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20%
Motor vehicle 331/3%

The Group’s hotel properties and buildings are located on land in the PRC held under medium term leases.

The hotel properties of the Group have been pledged to secure bank borrowings granted to the Group.
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16. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

The Group’s prepaid lease payments comprise:

THE GROUP
2010 2009

HK$’000 HK$’000

Leasehold land in the PRC on medium-term lease 13,214 13,515

Analysed for reporting purposes as:
Non-current assets 12,807 13,112
Current assets 407 403

13,214 13,515

17. PREMIUM ON PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS

Premium on prepaid lease payments of the Group represents the fair value adjustment on the prepaid lease
payments of the subsidiaries acquired during the year ended 31st July, 2009 and are amortised over the
period of the remaining lease term of 30 to 331/2 years on a straight-line basis.

The movement of premium on prepaid lease payments is set out below:

HK$’000

COST
At 1st August, 2008 —
Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries 192,468
Currency realignment 1,177

At 31st July, 2009 193,645
Currently realignment 1,620

At 31st July, 2010 195,265

AMORTISATION
At 1st August, 2008 —
Charge for the year 3,377

At 31st July, 2009 3,377
Charge for the year 5,838
Currency realignment 29

At 31st July, 2010 9,244

CARRYING VALUES
At 31st July, 2010 186,021

At 31st July, 2009 190,268
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES

THE COMPANY
2010 2009

HK$’000 HK$’000

Investments in subsidiaries:
Unlisted shares, at cost less impairment losses recognised 400 400

Amounts due from subsidiaries 1,109,101 1,095,601

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured and have no fixed terms of repayment. Except for an
amount of approximately HK$218,044,000 (2009: HK$183,283,000) which carries interest ranging from
Hong Kong Prime Rate to Hong Kong Prime Rate plus 6.5% (2009: Hong Kong Prime Rate to Hong Kong
Prime Rate plus 6.5%) per annum, the remaining balance is interest free. The carrying amounts of the
interest free advances have been determined based on an effective interest rate of 5.0% (2009: 5.0%) per
annum. The Company does not have any significant concentration of credit risk.

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31st July, 2009 and 2010 are as followings:

Proportion of
Place of Issued and nominal value of
incorporation/ paid up issued share capital

Name of subsidiary operation share capital held by the Company Principal activities
Directly Indirectly

% %

Adrian Realty Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100 — Property investment

Ahead Company Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 — Trading of securities
and investment holding

Evergood Management Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 — Investment holding

Hegel Trading Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 — Property investment

Silver Tower Limited Hong Kong HK$2 — 100 Property investment and
trading of securities

Top Mount Limited Hong Kong HK$2 — 100 Investment holding

Top Universal Management Limited Hong Kong HK$2 100 — Investment holding

Shiny Rising Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 — Provision of corporate
treasury services

Fame Asset Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 — Provision of corporate
management services

Sun Fat Investment and Industry Macau MOP50,000,000 — 99 Property investment
Co Limited

Hotel Fortuna (Hong Kong) Hong Kong HK$10,000 100 — Investment holding
Company Limited *

Foshan Fortuna Hotel PRC US$38,920,000 — 100 Hotel operations
Company Limited

佛山市財神酒店有限公司 *

* The subsidiaries were acquired during the reporting period ended 31st July, 2009. Details of this was set out in
note 37.
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18. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES/AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of the reporting period or at any time
during the reporting period.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the directors, principally
affected the results or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

THE GROUP
2010 2009

HK$’000 HK$’000

Cost of unlisted investments in associates 241,523 241,523
Share of post-acquisition results, net of dividend (20,192) (17,810)

221,331 223,713

At 31st July, 2009 and 2010, the Group had interests in the following associates:

Place of Proportion of
incorporation/principal quoted capital

Name of entity place of operation held by the Group Principal activities

Tin Fok Holdings Company Macau 32.5% Hotel operation
Limited (“Tin Fok”) (note)

Singon Holding Limited Hong Kong/ 25% Property development
Macau

note: This associate is controlled by Mr. Sio Tak Hong, the director of the Company. Approximately HK$209 million

(2009: HK$212 million) was included in interests in associates in respect of the Group’s interest in Tin Fok.

Included in the cost of investments in associates is goodwill of HK$2,362,000 arising on acquisition of Tin
Fok.
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

The summarised financial information in respect of the Group’s associates is set out below:

2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$’000

Total assets 953,419 1,029,348
Total liabilities (268,536) (337,149)

Net assets 684,883 692,199

Group’s share of net assets of associates 218,969 221,351

Revenue 200,662 163,113

Loss for the year (7,338) (5,804)

Group’s share of losses of associates (2,382) (1,886)

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

THE GROUP
2010 2009

HK$’000 HK$’000

Unlisted equity securities, at cost 69,890 69,890
Impairment loss recognised (10,040) (10,040)

59,850 59,850

The available-for-sale investments represent investments in unlisted equity securities issued by private
entities incorporated and operate in the United States of America and Macau involved in property investment.
They are measured at cost less impairment at the end of each reporting period because the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the directors of the Company are of the opinion that
their fair values cannot be measured reliably.

The Group’s available-for-sale investments that are denominated in currencies other than functional currencies
of the relevant group entities are set out below:

2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$’000

USD 13,640 13,640
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21. CONVERTIBLE BOND/DERIVATIVE COMPONENT IN CONVERTIBLE BOND

During the year ended 31st July, 2009, the Group subscribed a convertible bond issued by a company
listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, with principal amount of HK$44,000,000 which carries
interest at 4% per annum payable semi-annually in arrears with maturity on 18th August, 2010 at redemption
amount of 100% of the principal amount. The convertible bond can be converted at any time from the date
of issue to the maturity date and the issuer of convertible bond is entitled to redeem the principal prior to
maturity. The fair value at initial recognition of the receivable component and derivative component (including
the conversion option and early redemption option derivatives), which amounted to HK$39,984,000 and
HK$3,796,000 respectively, are determined based on the valuation provided by Greater China Appraisal
Limited, independent professionally qualified valuers not connected with the Group. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the receivable component is carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The convertible bond was recognised as follows:

Debt Derivative
component component

HK$’000 HK$’000

At date of subscription 39,984 3,796
Accretion of interest 1,861 —
Fair value gain credited to profit or loss — 3,087

At 31st July, 2009 41,845 6,883
Accretion of interest 675 —
Early redeemed by the issuer (42,520) (6,883)

At 31st July, 2010 — —

During the year, the convertible bond has been early redeemed by the issuer fully and the principal amount
of HK$44,000,000 has been repaid to the Group. A loss of HK$5,403,000 has been recognised in profit or
loss for the year ended 31st July, 2010 (2009: Nil).
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21. CONVERTIBLE BOND/DERIVATIVE COMPONENT IN CONVERTIBLE BOND
(Continued)

The methods and assumptions applied for the valuation of the convertible bond are as follows:

(i) Valuation of receivable component

At initial recognition, the fair value of receivable component was calculated based on the present
value of contractually determined stream of future cash flows discounted at the required yield, which
was determined with reference to the credit risk of the convertible bond issuer and maturity term.
The effective interest rate of the receivable component is 5.02%.

(ii) Valuation of derivative component

Derivative component is measured at fair value using the Binomial Option Pricing model, at initial
recognition and at the end of the reporting period. The inputs into the model as at date of subscription
and at 31st July, 2009, was as follows:

(Date of subscription)
18th August, 2008 31st July, 2009

Stock price HK$1.00 HK$0.85
Conversion price HK$1.30 HK$1.30
Volatility 39.60% 72.53%
Dividend yield 3.75% 0.00%
Option life 2 years 1.05 years
Risk free rate 2.119% 0.122%

22. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) ASSOCIATES/A RELATED PARTY

The amounts are unsecured, non-interest bearing, non-trade nature and repayable on demand. The amount
due from an associate is expected to be received within one year from the end of the reporting period.

An amount of HKD5,713,000 due to a related company represents advance from JiangMen Wuyi Golf
Course Entertainment Company Limited, in which Mr. Sio Tak Hong, a director of the Company has beneficial
interests.

23. PROPERTIES FOR DEVELOPMENT

Properties for development represent leasehold land located in Macau for development and future sale in
the ordinary course of business. Cost comprises the costs of land use rights under medium-term lease and
other cost directly attributable to bringing the leasehold land to the condition necessary for it to be ready for
development. Properties for development are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value. No finance
cost on development has been capitalised. During the year ended 31st July, 2010, the Group recognised
an impairment loss of HK$20,000,000 (2009: HK$54,033,000) on properties for development.

24. INVENTORIES

All of the Group’s inventories at 31st July, 2010 and 31st July, 2009 represent food and beverage for hotel
business.
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25. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

The Group allows an average credit period of 30 days to its trade customers, an aged analysis of trade
receivables based on invoice date is as follows:

THE GROUP
2010 2009

HK$’000 HK$’000

Trade receivables:
0 to 30 days 2,008 965
31 to 60 days 143 149
61 to 90 days 24 64
91 days or above 232 154

2,407 1,332
Prepayments and deposits 2,730 4,124
Other receivables 1,588 2,957

6,725 8,413

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the potential customer’s credit quality by
investigating their historical credit record and then defines the credit limit of that customer. There were no
balances as at 31st July, 2010 and 2009 which were past due but not provide for impairment. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

26. INVESTMENTS HELD FOR TRADING

Investments held for trading of the Group at 31st July, 2010 and 2009 represent equity securities listed in
Hong Kong and marketable bonds at quoted market price.

27. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES
AND CASH

Pledged bank deposit of the Group represents deposit pledged to a bank to secure short term banking
facilities granted to the Group. The deposit carries fixed interest rate of 0.01% (2009: 0.01% to 0.3%) per
annum. The pledged bank deposit will be released upon the release of relevant banking facilities.

Restricted bank deposits of the Group represents the margin deposits required by bank as at 31st July,
2009 with interest at rates ranging from 0.01% to 4.18% per annum.

Bank balances and cash of the Group and the Company comprise bank balances and cash held and short-
term bank deposits that are interest-bearing at market interest rate and are with maturity of three months or
less. The Group’s and the Company’s bank deposits carry interest rates ranging from Nil to 0.03% (2009:
0.01% to 4.18%) per annum and Nil to 0.01% (2009: Nil to 0.01%) per annum, respectively.
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27. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK BALANCES
AND CASH (Continued)

The Group’s and the Company’s bank balances and cash that are denominated in currencies other than the
functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out below:

THE GROUP
2010 2009

HK$’000 HK$’000

USD 3,144 535

THE COMPANY
2010 2009

HK$’000 HK$’000

USD 3,072 523

28. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 30 to 120 days, an aged analysis of trade payables is
as follows:

THE GROUP
2010 2009

HK$’000 HK$’000

Trade payables:
0 to 30 days 3,207 2,633
31 to 60 days 2,031 1,432
61 to 90 days 1,002 565
91 days or above 717 73

6,957 4,703
Accruals 12,205 11,560
Deposits received 121 121
Other payables 7,799 3,666

27,082 20,050
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29. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

THE GROUP
2010 2009

Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Decumulator contract — — — 1,056

The major terms of the outstanding decumulator contract as at 31st July, 2009 are set out below:

Notional amount Maturity Strike price
HK$

1,360,000 shares of China Telecom Corporation 28th October, 2009 3.1857

The Decumulator was measured at fair value at 31st July, 2009. The fair value was determined based on
the valuation provided by Greater China Appraisal Limited, independent professionally qualified valuers not
connected with the Group. The valuation of decumulator contract was evaluated by application of Binominal
Option Pricing model.

30. BANK BORROWINGS

THE GROUP
2010 2009

HK$’000 HK$’000

Secured bank loan 145,584 150,487

Bank borrowings are repayable as follows:

Within one year 11,866 6,110
More than one year but not exceeding two years 18,254 11,767
More than two years but not exceeding three years 23,959 18,104
More than three years but not exceeding four years 91,505 23,761
More than four years but not exceeding five years — 90,745

145,584 150,487
Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities (11,866) (6,110)

133,718 144,377

The loan carried interest at prevailing market rates and is repayable in instalments over five years. The
proceeds were used to repay loans from related parties and for general working capital purpose of the
Group.
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31. CONSIDERATION PAYABLE FOR ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

On 29th February, 2008, the Company entered into an agreement with Mason Creation Limited, Upper Way
Holdings Limited and Mr. Siu Ka Kuen (the “Vendors”) and Mr. Sio Tak Hong and Mr. Tang Fung (the
“Warrantors”), pursuant to which, the Company has conditionally agreed to acquire from the Vendors the
entire issued share capital of Hotel Fortuna (Hong Kong) Company Limited (“Hotel Fortuna (Hong Kong)”)
and all outstanding liabilities owed by Hotel Fortuna (Hong Kong) to each of the Vendors as at completion
date of the agreement at an aggregate consideration of approximately HK$550,000,000 (subject to
adjustments).

Hotel Fortuna (Hong Kong) is an investment holding company and its principal asset is its 100% equity
interest in 佛山巿財神酒店有限公司 Foshan Fortuna Hotel Company Limited, which is established in the
PRC and owns a hotel situated at Le Cong Zhen, Shun De District, Foshan, Guangdong Province, the PRC.

At 31st July, 2008, an aggregate amount of HK$250,000,000 was paid to the Vendors as deposit. The
acquisition was completed on 31st December, 2008 at an adjusted consideration of approximately
HK$533,982,000. The remaining consideration (after deducting the deposit) of approximately
HK$283,982,000 is payable to the Vendors by 31st December, 2011 and carries interest at the rate of 2%
per annum.

During the year ended 31st July, 2010, interest of approximately HK$2,020,000 (2009: HK$3,196,000) has
been incurred on the outstanding consideration payable. Principal amounting to HK$33,316,000 (2009:
HK$170,389,000) and interest amounting to HK$2,252,000 (2009: HK$1,876,000) has been settled during
the year and the remaining balance of the accrued interest was included in other payables as at 31st July,
2010.

Details of acquisition are set out in note 37.

32. AMOUNTS DUE TO SUBSIDIARIES

The amounts are unsecured, interest bearing at Hong Kong Prime Rate plus 6.5% and have no fixed terms
of repayment.
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33. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised and movements thereon during the
current and prior year.

Accelerated
tax Tax Fair value

depreciation losses adjustments Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

(note)

THE GROUP
At 1st August, 2008 1,861 (1,861) — —
Charge (credit) to profit or loss (44) 44 — —
Acquisition of subsidiaries — — 71,079 71,079

At 31st July, 2009 1,817 (1,817) 71,079 71,079
Charge (credit) to profit or loss 170 (170) (2,351) (2,351)

At 31st July, 2010 1,987 (1,987) 68,728 68,728

Note: The fair value adjustments represented the fair value changes on property, plant and equipment and prepaid

lease payments arising from the acquisition of subsidiaries as disclosed in note 37.

At 31st July, 2010, the Group and the Company had unused tax losses of HK$228,258,000 (2009:
HK$163,883,000) and HK$21,037,000 (2009: HK$13,411,000), respectively, available to offset against
future profits. A deferred tax asset of the Group has been recognised in respect of HK$12,039,000 (2009:
HK$11,010,000) of such tax losses. No deferred tax assets of the Group and the Company have been
recognised in respect of the remaining unused tax losses of HK$216,219,000 (2009: HK$152,873,000)
and HK$21,037,000 (2009: HK$13,411,000), respectively, due to unpredictability of future profit streams.
The tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely. In addition, the Group has deductible temporary differences
of HK$74,033,000 (2009: HK$54,033,000) in relating to impairment loss recognised on properties for
development. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in relation to such deductible temporary difference
as it is not probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences
can be utilised.
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34. SHARE CAPITAL

Number of
ordinary shares Amount

HK$’000

Ordinary shares at HK$0.1 each (note d)

Authorised:

At 1st August, 2008 and 31st July, 2009, at HK$0.01 each 200,000,000,000 2,000,000
Share consolidation (note d) (180,000,000,000) —

At 31st July, 2010, at HK$0.1 each 20,000,000,000 2,000,000

Issued and fully paid:

At 1st August, 2008, at HK$0.01 each 13,286,896,896 132,869
Issue of shares (note a) 8,000,000,000 80,000
Exercise of share options (note b) 3,000,000 30

At 31st July, 2009, at HK$0.01 each 21,289,896,896 212,899
Exercise of share options (note c) 194,000,000 1,940

21,483,896,896 214,839
Share consolidation (note d) (19,335,507,207) —

At 31st July, 2010, at HK$0.1 each 2,148,389,689 214,839

Notes:

(a) On 17th July, 2009, the Company issued 8,000,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each for cash at a

subscription price of HK$0.025 per share pursuant to a subscription agreement. The issuance of these new

shares has been approved by the independent shareholders of the Company at a general meeting held on 15th

July, 2009. The net proceeds of approximately HK$198,424,000 raised have been used to settle part of the

outstanding balance payable in relation to the acquisition of Hotel Fortuna (Hong Kong) and for general working

capital purposes. The new shares rank pari passu in all respects with the then existing issued shares.

(b) In July 2009, the Company issued 3,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company for cash at

HK$0.0348 per share, as a result of the exercise of share options granted to a director. The new shares rank pari

passu in all respects with the then existing issued shares.

(c) During the year ended 31st July, 2010, the Company issued 194,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in

the Company for each at HK$0.0348 per share, as a result of the exercise of share options granted to directors

and employees. The new shares rank pari passu in all respect with the then existing issued shares.

(d) Pursuant to an ordinary resolution at the extraordinary general meeting held on 7th May, 2010, every ten issued

and unissued shares of HK$0.01 each in the Company was consolidated into one share of HK$0.10 each in the

Company and the share consolidation became effective on 10th May, 2010.
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35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to a resolution passed on 30th December, 2002, the existing share option scheme was adopted
(the “Scheme”) for the primary purpose of providing incentives to directors, employees and eligible
participants. The Scheme will expire on 29th December, 2012.

Under the Scheme, the Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”) may grant options to executive
directors, employees of the Company and its subsidiaries and such eligible participants at the discretion of
the Board pursuant to the terms of the Scheme, to subscribe for shares of the Company at a price per
share not less than the highest of i) the closing price of a share of the Company listed on the Stock Exchange
at the date of grant of the option; ii) the average of the closing price of a share of the Company on the Stock
Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant of the option; and iii) the nominal
value of a share of the Company.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options shall be granted under the Scheme shall not
exceed 10% in aggregate of the issued share capital of the Company at the date of its adoption. No
director, employee or eligible participant may be granted options under the Scheme which will enable him
or her if exercise in full to subscribe for exceeding 1% of the issued share capital of the Company in any 12-
month period. The option period for which the options granted can be exercisable, shall be such period as
notified by the Board, save that it shall not be more than 10 years from the date of grant subject to the
terms of the Scheme. Nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of each grant and the
share options granted shall be accepted within 28 days from the date of grant.

At 31st July, 2010, no shares options had been granted and remained outstanding under the Scheme
(2009: 19,400,000*).

The following table discloses movements in such holdings during the year:

Outstanding Granted Exercised Cancelled Outstanding

Exercise at during during during at

Date of grant Exercisable period price 1.8.2009 the year the year the year 31.7.2010

HK$

19.09.2008 19.09.2008 — 18.03.2012 0,348* 19,400,000* — (19,400,000)* — —

Outstanding Granted Exercised Cancelled Outstanding

Exercise at during during during at

Date of grant Exercisable period price 1.8.2008 the year the year the year 31.7.2009

HK$

31.07.2007 31.07.2007 — 30.07.2010 2.550* 43,038,000* — — (43,038,000)* —

19.09.2008 19.09.2008 — 18.03.2012 0.348* — 19,700,000* (300,000)* — 19,400,000*

43,038,000* 19,700,000* (300,000)* (43,038,000)* 19,400,000*

The share options outstanding at 1st August, 2009 were exercised prior to the share consolidation (note
34) effective on 10th May, 2010, and the weighted average share price was HK$0.546* per share.

* The number and exercise price of the share options have been adjusted for presentation purpose to reflect the

ten-to-one share consolidation effective on 10 May 2010,
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35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

Details of the options held by the directors or former directors included in the above table are as follows:

Outstanding Granted Exercised Cancelled Outstanding

Exercise at during during during at

Date of grant Exercisable period price 1.8.2009 the year the year the year 31.7.2010

HK$

19.09.2008 19.09.2008 — 18.03.2010 0.348* 17,400,000* — (17,400,000)* — —

Outstanding Granted Exercised Cancelled Outstanding

Exercise at during during during at

Date of grant Exercisable period price 1.8.2008 the year the year the year 31.7.2009

HK$

19.09.2008 19.09.2008 — 18.03.2010 0.348* — 17,700,000* (300,000)* — 17,400,000*

During the year ended 31st July, 2009, 19,700,000* options were granted to the Group’s employees and
directors on 19th September, 2008. The estimated fair values of the options granted on that date are
HK$1,950,000.

The fair value was calculated using Binominal Option Pricing Model. The inputs into the model were as
follows:

Grant date 19th September, 2008
Vesting date 19th September, 2008
Grant date share price HK$0.320*
Exercise price HK$0.348*
Expected life 18 months
Expected volatility 113.656%
Risk-free interest rate 1.573%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of the Company’s share price over the
previous one year. The expected life used in the model has been adjusted, based on management’s best
estimate, for the effects of non transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioral considerations.

For the year ended 31st July, 2010, no share option was granted. For the year ended 31st July, 2009, the
Group recognised the total expense of HK$1,950,000 for the year in which approximately HK$198,000
was related to options granted to the Group’s employees and shown as staff costs as set out in note 10,
and the remaining balance of approximately HK$1,752,000 was related to options granted to directors
which have been included in directors’ emoluments as set out in note 11.

* The number and exercise price of the share options have been adjusted for presentation purpose to reflect the

ten-to-one share consolidation effective on 10 May 2010.
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36. SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES

THE COMPANY

Share Capital Capital
Share Capital option reduction redemption Accumulated

premium reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

THE COMPANY
At 1st August, 2008 868,904 2,127 23,542 170,583 268 (185,401) 880,023
Loss for the year — — — — — (248,401) (248,401)
Issue of shares (note 34a) 120,000 — — — — — 120,000
Expenses incurred in connection

with issue of shares (1,576) — — — — — (1,576)
Recognition of equity-settled

share-based payment — — 1,950 — — — 1,950
Exercise of share options

(note 34b) 104 — (30) — — — 74

At 31st July, 2009 987,432 2,127 25,462 170,583 268 (433,802) 752,070
Loss for the year — — — — — (42,056) (42,056)
Exercise of share options

(note 34c) 6,731 — (1,920) — — — 4,811

At 31st July, 2010 994,163 2,127 23,542 170,583 268 (475,858) 714,825

Under the capital reduction exercise carried out in October 2002, the Company undertook to maintain a
capital reduction reserve account. This account would not be treated as realised profits and should be
treated as reserve of the Company, which should not be distributable until or unless the creditors of the
Company as at the date of the sanction of the reduction of capital (the “Creditors”) were fully settled,
provided for by the Company or the remaining Creditors and each of them did consent by which time the
account would be cancelled and provided that prior to the cancellation of the account, the Company might
apply it in paying up unissued shares of the Company to be issued to members as fully paid bonus shares.
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37. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

During the year ended 31st July, 2009, the Company acquired the entire issued share capital of Hotel
Fortuna (Hong Kong) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred as “Fortuna Group”) at a consideration of
approximately HK$533,982,000. After the completion of the acquisition, Hotel Fortuna (Hong Kong) has
become a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

The net (liabilities) assets acquired in the transactions are as follows:

Hotel Fortuna
(Hong Kong)’s Hotel Fortuna

carrying Fair value (Hong Kong)’s
amount adjustments Fair value

Note HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Net (liabilities) assets acquired:
Property, plant and equipment 374,185 91,846 466,031
Prepaid lease payments 13,671 — 13,671
Premium on prepaid lease payments — 192,468 192,468
Inventory 2,845 — 2,845
Trade and other receivables 4,799 — 4,799
Bank balances and cash 13,398 — 13,398
Trade and other payables (22,412) — (22,412)
Loans from related parties (136,456) — (136,456)
Loans from ex-shareholders (424,014) — (424,014)
Deferred tax liabilities — (71,079) (71,079)
Obligation under a finance lease (362) — (362)

(174,346) 213,235 38,889

Goodwill arising on acquisition 71,079

109,968

Total consideration satisfied by:

Deposit paid in previous year 250,000
Consideration payable for acquisition

of subsidiaries 31 283,982

533,982
Loans from ex-shareholders transferred

to the Group (424,014)

109,968

Net cash inflow arising on acquisition:

Bank balances and cash acquired 13,398

During the year ended 31st July, 2009, the subsidiaries acquired contributed HK$47,606,000 and
HK$23,015,000 to the Group’s revenue and loss for the year, respectively, between the dates of acquisition
and the end of the reporting period.
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37. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Had the acquisitions been completed on 1st August, 2008, the Group’s revenue and loss for the year
would have been HK$85,124,000 and HK$248,980,000, respectively. This proforma information is for
illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily indicative of the revenue and results of the Group that
would actually have been impacted had the acquisitions been completed on 1st August, 2008, nor is it
intended to be a projection of future results.

Goodwill of approximately HK$71,079,000 was recognised upon the completion of the acquisition of Fortuna
Group. The recoverable amount of the Fortuna Group’s cash generating unit, determined by value in use
with reference to the discounted cash flow of this cash generating unit, is lower than its carrying amount.
Accordingly, the goodwill was fully impaired and recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

38. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At 31st July, 2010, hotel properties of HK$322,452,000 (2009: HK$338,638,000) of the Group were pledged
to secure bank borrowings of RMB127,600,000 equivalent to approximately of HK$145,584,000 (2009:
RMB133,000,000, equivalent to approximately of HK$150,487,000) granted to the Group. Bank deposit of
HK$641,000 (2009: HK$641,000) of the Group was pledged to banks to secure credit facilities to the
extent of HK$600,000 (2009: HK$600,000) granted to the Group, of which HK$5,000 (2009: HK$23,000)
was utilised by the Group.

39. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

Prior to 1st December, 2000, the Group operated defined contribution retirement benefit schemes (“Defined
Contribution Schemes”) for its qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the schemes were held
separately from those of the Group in funds under the control of independent trustees. Where there are
employees who leave the Defined Contribution Schemes prior to vesting fully in the contributions, the
amount of the forfeited contributions would be used to reduce future contributions payable by the Group.
Since the Defined Contribution Schemes were terminated on 1st December, 2000, forfeited contributions
in respect of unvested benefits of employees leaving the Group under the Defined Contribution Schemes
cannot be used to reduce ongoing contributions. The Group did not have forfeited contributions for both
years.

Effective on 1st December, 2000, the Group has joined the MPF Scheme for all of its employees in Hong
Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered with the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in funds under the control of an independent trustee. Under the rule of
the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each required to make contributions to the scheme
at rate specified in the rules. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to make
the required contributions under the scheme.

The employees employed by PRC subsidiaries are members of the state-managed retirement benefits
schemes operated by the PRC government. The PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll to the retirement benefits schemes to fund the benefits. The only obligation of
the Group with respect of the retirement benefits schemes is to make the required contributions under the
schemes.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from the MPF Scheme and the PRC state-managed
retirement benefit scheme charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income represent
contributions payable to the scheme by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the scheme. For the year
ended 31st July, 2010, contributions of the Group under the MPF Scheme and the PRC state-managed
retirement benefit scheme amounted to HK$2,021,000 (2009: HK$1,235,000).
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40. OPERATING LEASES

The Group as lessee

Minimum lease payments paid under operating leases for premises during the year was HK$2,813,000
(2009: HK$3,506,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows:

THE GROUP
2010 2009

HK$’000 HK$’000

Within one year 2,491 2,347
In the second to fifth year inclusive 4,653 3,024
Over five years 8,181 3,019

15,325 8,390

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for certain of its office premises and staff
quarters. Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for an average term of two to ten years (2009: two to
ten years).

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned by the Group during the year was HK$568,000 (2009: HK$568,000). Certain
of the Group’s properties are held for rental purposes and are expected to generate rental yields of 2%
(2009: 2%) for both years, on an ongoing basis. The properties of the Group held for rental purposes have
no committed tenants for the both years.

41. CAPITAL COMMITMENT

THE GROUP
2010 2009

HK$’000 HK$’000

Capital expenditure in respect of the acquisition of
property, plant and equipment contracted for but not
provided in the consolidated financial statements 15,034 —
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42. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

(a) During the year ended 31st July, 2009, the Group paid interest expenses of HK$1,228,000 for loans
from a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company and companies in which the director has
beneficial interest. During the year ended 31st July, 2010, no such interest expense was paid.

(b) Related party balances

Details of the Group’s and Company’s outstanding balances with related parties are set out in the
consolidated and Company’s statements of financial position and in note 18 and 22.

(c) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management during the year was as follows:

2010 2009
HK$’000 HK$’000

Short-term benefits 3,700 3,700
Post-employment benefits 12 12
Share-based payment — 1,752

3,712 5,464

The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined by the board of directors after
recommendation from the Remuneration Committee, having regard to the performance of individuals
and market trends.

43. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which includes the borrowing disclosed in note 30,
net of cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital and various reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a semi-annual basis. As part of this review,
the directors consider the cost of capital and the risks associates with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new debts.
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

44a. Categories of financial instruments

THE GROUP
2010 2009

HK$’000 HK$’000

Financial assets

Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
held for trading 50,372 32,345

Derivative financial instruments — 6,883
Loans and receivables (including cash and cash

equivalents) 40,314 88,726
Available-for-sale financial assets 59,850 59,850

Financial liabilities
Amortised cost 246,330 272,449
Derivative financial instruments — 1,056

THE COMPANY
2010 2009

HK$’000 HK$’000

Financial assets

Loans and receivables (including cash and cash
equivalents) 1,117,811 1,123,463

Financial liabilities
Amortised cost 187,181 156,344

44b. Financial risks management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments are set out in note 44(a) above and details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The management manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Market risk

(i) Currency risk

The Group and the Company has foreign currency bank balances which expose the Group
and the Company to foreign currency risk.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s foreign currency denominated
monetary assets at the reporting date are as follows:

THE GROUP
2010 2009

HK$’000 HK$’000

USD 3,144 535
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

44b. Financial risks management objectives and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(i) Currency risk (Continued)

THE COMPANY
2010 2009

HK$’000 HK$’000

USD 3,072 523

Sensitivity analysis

The Group and the Company is mainly exposed to the fluctuation in USD. The foreign currency
risk is not significant as HKD is pegged with USD.

(ii) Interest rate risk

Consideration payable for acquisition of subsidiaries at fixed rates expose the Group and the
Company to fair value interest rate risk. At 31st July, 2009 the Group was also exposed to
fair value interest rate risk in relation to convertible bond.

Details of the Group’s and the Company’s interest bearing financial instruments have been
disclosed in their respective notes to the consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s and the Company’s exposures to interest rates on financial liabilities are detailed
in the liquidity risk management section of this note. The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk
is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of the rate determined by the People’s Bank of
China arising from the Group’s RMB borrowings. Certain amounts of the amounts due from
subsidiaries of the Company also expose the Company to cash flow interest rate due to the
fluctuation of the Hong Kong Prime Rate.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to interest rates
for variable rate non-derivative instruments at the end of the reporting period. The analysis is
prepared assuming the financial instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting period
was outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point increase or decrease is used when
reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

The effect of an increase/decrease in interest rates by 50 (2009: 50) basis points, with all
other variables held constant, on the Group’s and the Company’s loss for both years would
be insignificant.
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

44b. Financial risks management objectives and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

(iii) Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from investments held for trading and
available-for-sale investments (which are stated at cost as their fair values cannot be estimated
reliably). Management manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risks. The Group’s equity price risk is mainly concentrated on listed equity instruments
quoted on the Stock Exchange. In addition, the Group has appointed a special team to
monitor the price risk and will consider hedging the risk exposure should the need arise.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure to equity price
risks assuming all other variables were held constant, at the reporting date.

If the prices of the respective equity investments had been 5% higher/lower, the Group’s loss
for the year ended 31st July, 2010 would decrease/increase by HK$2,103,000 (2009:
decrease/increase by HK$1,099,000) as a result of the changes in fair value of investments
held for trading.

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group due to
failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial position.

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Company
due to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the statement of financial position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group and the Company has delegated
a team responsible for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other monitoring procedures
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual trade debt at the end of each reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the
Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group does not expose to significant concentration of credit risk. At 31st July, 2009 the Group
had concentration of credit risk in relation to investment in convertible bond issued by an entity
listed in the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The management had continued to monitor the
financial performance of the listed company for the purpose of monitoring its credit risk exposure.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit-rating agencies.
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

44b. Financial risks management objectives and policies (Continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group and the Company monitors and maintains a level
of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management monitors the utilisation of
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan covenants.

All the Company’s financial liabilities except consideration payable for acquisition of subsidiaries are
either repayable in less than 3 months or repayable on demand.

The following tables detail the Group’s remaining contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. For
non-derivatives financial liabilities, the tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of the financial liabilities based on the earliest dates on which the Group can be required to
pay. For derivative financial liabilities, the table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows on those derivatives instruments. The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To
the extent that interest are at floating rate, the undiscounted amount is based on the interest rate at
the end of the reporting period.

Liquidity tables

Total Carrying
undiscounted amount

Contractual Less than 1-3 3 months cash at
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year 1-5 years flows 31.7.2010

% HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

2010
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade and other payables — 14,756 — — — 14,756 14,756
Amount due to a related party — 5,713 — — — 5,713 5,713
Bank borrowings 5.68 — 3,837 15,617 159,646 179,100 145,584
Consideration payable for acquisition

of subsidiaries 2.00 — — 1,806 80,946 82,752 80,277

20,469 3,837 17,423 240,592 282,321 246,330

Total Carrying
undiscounted amount

Contractual Less than 1-3 3 months cash at
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year 1-5 years flows 31.7.2009

% HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

2009
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade and other payables — 8,369 — — — 8,369 8,369
Bank borrowings 5.68 — 3,180 11,124 180,564 194,868 150,487
Consideration payable for acquisition

of subsidiaries 2.00 — — 2,020 116,811 118,831 113,593

8,369 3,180 13,144 297,375 322,068 272,449

Derivative financial liabilities —
net settlement

Derivative financial instruments — — 1,056 — — 1,056 1,056

The amounts included above for variable interest rate instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities
is subjected to change if changes in variable interest rates differ to those estimates of interest rates
determined at the end of the reporting period.
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44. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

44c. Fair value

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows:

• the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments), with
standard terms and conditions and traded on active liquid markets are determined with
reference to quoted market bid prices and ask prices, respectively; and

• the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments)
are determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted
cash flow analysis.

The directors consider that the carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded
at amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements approximate their respective fair values.

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position

The financial instruments that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value are grouped
into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair value is observable are as follows:

• Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
market for identical assets or liabilities;

• Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices
included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);

• Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include
inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable
inputs).

As at 31st July, 2010, all of the Group’s investments held for trading were measured using Level 1
fair value measurements.

45. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 14th October, 2010, the Company entered into a placing agreement with a placing agent, in which the
placing agent agreed to procure, on a best effort basis, subscribers for up to HK$135,000,000 aggregate
principal amount of 4% convertible notes (the “Notes”) of the Company due in 2013 convertible into ordinary
shares of the Company during the period from the issue date of the Notes up to the business day last
preceding the fifth business day prior to the maturity date at the initial conversion price of HK$0.36 per
share (subject to adjustment). The net proceeds from the placing of the Notes (after deducting estimated
expenses) are estimated to be approximately HK$131,200,000, which will be used for general working
capital of the Group. Up to the date of these consolidated financial statements were authorised for issuance,
the placing pursuant to the placing agreement has not yet been completed.
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RESULTS

Year ended 31st July,
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Continuing operations
Revenue 108,433 48,174 898 567 411
Gains (losses) on financial

investment 6,400 (38,934) (188,836) 154,133 72,456

114,833 9,240 (187,938) 154,700 72,867

(Loss) profit before taxation (73,018) (228,343) (201,535) 110,464 40,278
Taxation 2,351 — 22 (22,770) (11,539)

(70,667) (228,343) (201,513) 87,694 28,739
Discontinued operation
(Loss) profit for the year from

discontinued operations — — — (2,386) 243

(Loss) profit for the year (70,667) (228,343) (201,513) 85,308 28,982

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company (70,209) (227,224) (201,507) 85,140 28,900
Non-controlling interests (458) (1,119) (6) 168 82

(70,667) (228,343) (201,513) 85,308 28,982

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

At 31st July,
2010 2009 2008 2007 2006

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

Total assets 1,273,908 1,362,475 1,045,518 929,895 522,647
Total liabilities (352,932) (381,813) (39,902) (47,460) (32,468)

920,976 980,662 1,005,616 882,435 490,179

Equity attributable to owners
of the Company 918,688 977,916 1,001,851 882,435 488,961

Non-controlling interests 2,288 2,746 3,765 — 1,218

920,976 980,662 1,005,616 882,435 490,179
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Particulars of major properties held by the Group at 31st July, 2010 are as follows:

(a) Investment properties:

Location Use Term of the lease

Car parks no. 14 and 22 - 29 on ground floor Carparking Long lease
Cherry Court, 10-12 Consort Rise spaces
Hong Kong

Car parks no. 18, 19 and 22 - 26 on ground floor Carparking Medium-term lease
Berkeley Bay Villa spaces
Lot No. 836 in DD214
Sai Kung, New Territories

Shops no. 303, 310, 314, 316, 317, 320, 327 and Shops Medium-term lease
329 - 332 on third floor

Shops no. 201, 203 - 205, 208 - 211, 214 - 218, 220,
222, 224, 225, 227, 229, 230 and 232 on second floor

Shops no. 101 - 106, 108 - 110, 112, 113, 115 - 117
and 119 - 131 on first floor

Shops no. 1 - 8, 10 - 11 on upper ground floor
Shops no. 76, 76A, 78, 80, 82 and 82A

on ground floor
Shops no. 1 - 10 on lower ground floor
Time Plaza, 76 - 82 Castle Peak Road
Shamshuipo, Kowloon

(b) Hotel properties:

Location Use Term of lease

Hotel Fortuna Foshan Hotel operations Medium-term lease
No. B82 Lecong Avenue East,
Lecong Residential Committee,
Lecong Town, Shunde District,
Foshan City,
Guangdong Province,
the PRC

(c) Properties for development:

Expected Site/Floor Area
Stage of date of (approx.) Group

Location Use completion completion sq. ft. interest

Terreno Junto’a Estrada de Vacant land Not applicable Not applicable 109,298 99%
Nossa Senhora de Ka’ Ho’
S. Francisco Xavier, Coloare, Macau


